
Agenda

Companies Scrutiny Panel

Date: Wednesday 12 December 2018

Time: 6.00 pm

Place: St Aldate's Room - Oxford Town Hall

For any further information please contact: 
Stefan Robinson, Scrutiny Officer
Telephone: 01865 252191
Email: srobinson@oxford.gov.uk

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record the meeting please let the 
Contact Officer know how you wish to do this before the start of the meeting.



HOW TO OBTAIN A COPY OF THE AGENDA

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no longer produce 
paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum requirements. Paper copies may be looked at 
the Town Hall Reception and at Customer Services, St Aldate’s and at the Westgate Library

A copy of the agenda may be:-
- Viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk
- Downloaded from our website
- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk

Companies Scrutiny  Panel
Membership

Chair Councillor James Fry

Vice-Chair

Councillor Craig Simmons Councillor Tiago Corais
Councillor Tom Landell Mills Councillor Chewe Munkonge
Councillor Richard Howlett



AGENDA

Pages

MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC 
1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
3  NOTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 7 - 10

To note the notes of the previous meeting. 

4  DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS
To note the dates of future meetings:

3 January 2019 – Cancelled due to Shareholder meeting change 
6 March 2018 (new date)

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE - MATTERS EXEMPT 
FROM PUBLICATION
If the Companies Panel wishes to exclude the press and the public from the 
meeting during consideration of any of the items on the exempt from 
publication part of the agenda, it will be necessary to pass a resolution in 
accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 4(2)(b) of the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012 on the grounds that their presence could involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as described in specific paragraphs of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972. 

The Panel may maintain the exemption if and so long as, in all the 
circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

5  THE FUTURE STRATEGIC DIRECTION OF OXFORD CITY 
HOUSING LIMITED (OCHL)

11 - 14

To consider a report which has been submitted to the Housing Group 
Shareholder detailing implemented changes to Government housing policy 
and potential outcomes of recent Government consultations that could impact 
on OCHL’s operating environment and strategic purpose. 

The report will be considered by the Housing Group Shareholder on 17 
December 2018. 

Recommendation:
The Companies Scrutiny Panel is invited to consider the report and make any 
comments or recommendations as appropriate to the Housing Group 
Shareholder. 



6  OCHL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME 15 - 18
To consider a report which has been submitted to the Housing Group 
Shareholder detailing the progress made by the Housing Group on the 
delivery of the housing development projects. 

The report will be considered by the Housing Group Shareholder on 17 
December 2018. 

Recommendation:
The Companies Scrutiny Panel is invited to consider the report and make any 
comments or recommendations as appropriate to the Housing Group 
Shareholder. 



DECLARING INTERESTS

General duty

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item on the 
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you.

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for expenses 
incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your election expenses); 
contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the Council’s area; corporate tenancies; 
and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which 
is publicly available on the Council’s website.

Declaring an interest

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, you must 
declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as the existence of 
the interest.

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you must not 
participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter 
is discussed.

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of Conduct 
says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that “you must not place yourself 
in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned”.  What this means is that the 
matter of interests must be viewed within the context of the Code as a whole and regard should 
continue to be paid to the perception of the public.

*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself but 
also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or as if they were 
civil partners.



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes of a meeting of the 
COMPANIES SCRUTINY  PANEL
on Tuesday 13 November 2018 

Committee members:
Councillor Fry (Chair) Councillor Landell Mills
Councillor Munkonge

Council Officers: 
Nigel Kennedy, Head of Financial Services
Anita Bradley, Head of Law and Governance 
Stefan Robinson, Scrutiny Officer

Oxford Direct Services:
Simon Howick, Managing Director, Trading Companies
Tim Sadler, Executive Director Sustainable City
Aled Bath, Finance Director 
Lindsay Cane, Company Secretary 

Also Present:
Councillor Nigel Chapman, Board Member for Customer Focussed Services.

37. Apologies for Absence 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Simmons, Henwood and 
Corais. 

38. Declarations of interest 
There were no decelerations of interest. 

39. Minutes of the previous meeting 
The minutes of the previous meeting were approved as a true and accurate record. 

40. Managing Director's Half Year Performance Report 
Simon Howick, Managing Director of Oxford Direct Services (ODS), explained that the 
accuracy and usefulness of the street cleaning and graffiti performance indicators had 
previously been questioned by the Panel, and that these were now under review. 
Effective health as safety management processes remained a focus for ODS, and 
performance in this area remained good. 

7

Agenda Item 3



The sample size used for the housing repairs performance indicator had been 
increased significantly. With over 1000 households contacted for feedback since the 
start of October 2018. The key themes from those conversations with customers 
included:

 Jobs were taking too long
 Customers were not being kept informed
 Repairs not being undertaken on the first visit
 A lack of communication across the board
 High levels of customers were unhappy with the surveyor inspection service. 

Councillor Chapman, Board Member for Customer Focussed Services, said that it was 
inefficient for ODS and the Council to both be deploying surveyors. Simon Howick said 
he would be able to provide an update on this issue at the next meeting of the 
Companies Panel, together with an update on street cleanliness matters. 

The Chair, Councillor Fry, asked for more detail on the ‘programming difficulties 
identified in the report. It was explained that a pipeline of work associated with the 
Council’s wholly owned Housing Company had not yet come forward. Furthermore, 
there had been delays in the progress of the Seacourt park and ride development. The 
Chair advocated for greater foresight on capital works planning to account for likely 
delays in the planning process. It was noted that councillor concerns around capital 
slippage would be better directed to the Council’s Housing Company Shareholder 
Group.
 
In response to questions, it was explained that a piece of work had been commissioned 
concerning rationalising the Company’s depot space. The outcome of this work was 
hoped to be completed by the end of 2018. Wider work was still underway to develop 
and hone ODS’s market offer which would feed into the business plan refresh next 
year. It was also clarified that where appropriate, quarterly targets were adjusted for 
seasonality. 

Councillor Chapman expressed the view that removing graffiti from private property, 
and retrospectively charging people for the work, was not an effective way to tackle the 
issue; an approach that was recently adopted by the Council. He was looking to bring 
forward a paper in the future proposing a change to this approach. 

Councillor Munkonge asked what lessons could be learnt from the collapse of Carillion, 
noting that 42% of ODS’s turnover was attributed to waste disposal. Simon Howick 
explained that ODS was very different to Carillion, principally because it was wholly 
owned by the Council. He assured the Panel that any risks were spread and taken 
account of, and that suitably qualified people were involved in the Company’s 
management. Tim Sadler, Chair of the Board, said that Carillion took on too much risk 
and work, with their profit margins being very thin. This was not the approach that 
would be taken by ODS. 

41. Non-Executive Directors 
Tim Sadler explained that now was the appropriate time to seek independent expert 
non-executive directors for ODS. Whilst it was hoped that candidates would be 

8



appointed on a voluntary basis, this was unlikely given the skills required, and they 
would therefore need to be remunerated. In response to questions, he said that either 2 
or 3 non-executive directors seemed appropriate, and that they would be looking for 
specific skills from the directors. 

The Panel noted its support for the decision to involve non-executive directors. Anita 
Bradley, Head of Law and Governance, said that further consideration needed to be 
given to the sequencing of governance decisions associated with any appointments. 

42. Reports Containing Confidential or Exempt Information 
The Panel noted that the Finance Directors Half Year Report was exempt from 
publication under the terms of Paragraph 3, Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.  Accordingly, the Panel passed a resolution to move into private 
session. 

43. Finance Director’s Half Year Report 
For the purposes of providing a public minute, a summary of the discussion had in 
private session is provided here. 

Aled Bath, Finance Director, explained that work was underway to strengthen the 
financial accounting processes within ODS, and a summary dashboard of financial 
indicators had been provided to the Panel, as previously recommended by the Panel to 
the Shareholder Group. 

ODS had been operating for 6 months since April 2018, and the broad financial 
situation was positive; being on target to meet the Medium Term Financial Plan. The 
Panel asked whether in future they could receive disaggregated finance data on 
interest and tax payments, given the significant costs associated with them. It was 
noted that fixed costs had increased significantly in the second half of the year, and 
Aled Bath suggested a more balanced approach would be achieved in future years. 

In response to questions, it was clarified that there was a strong preference for ODS to 
source local contractors where necessary. 

44. Date of next meeting 
The Panel noted that the next meeting of the Companies Panel would be held on 12 
December 2018. 

The meeting ended at 7:25pm

9



This page is intentionally left blank

10



Document is Restricted

11

Agenda Item 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

15

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Notes of the Previous meeting
	Minutes

	5 The future strategic direction of Oxford City Housing Limited (OCHL)
	6 OCHL Development Programme

